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PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING 

Guadalupe County Auditor’s Office 
307 W. Court, Suite 205 
Seguin, Texas 78155 
830-303-4188 Ext. 1328 

Bid Title: PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING 
Bid No.: 15-5300.PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING 
Addendum No.: 1 
Issued: November 21, 2014 

TO BIDDER:  This addendum is an integral part of the bid package under consideration by you as a Bidder in 
connection with the subject matter herein below identified.  Guadalupe County deems all sealed bids to have been 
proffered in recognition and consideration of the entire bid package – including all issued addenda.   

Receipt of this present Addendum by a Bidder should be evidenced by returning it signed as part of the Bidder’s 
sealed bid proposal.  If the Bid has already been received by the County Judge’s office, Bidder should return this 
Addendum in a separate sealed envelope, which is clearly marked with the Bid Title, Bid Number and Opening Date 
and Time, stated as follows: 

ADDENDUM TO: Pre-Engineered Metal Building 
Bid No. 15-5300.PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING (Lube Center) 
2:00 p.m., December 2, 2014 

REASON FOR ISSUANCE OF THIS ADDENDUM: 

1. Clarification to Specifications as per Contractors’ Request for Information.
See attached documents.

The information included herein is hereby incorporated into the documents of this present bid matter and supersedes 
any conflicting documents or portion thereof previously issued. 

Receipt of this Addendum is hereby acknowledged by the undersigned Bidder. 

Authorized Signature (Bidder) 

Title of Person Signing Above 

Typed Name of Firm, Corporation 



BID No. 15-5300, Addendum No.1 

1. Question: Please specify the roof finish. A1.2 calls for standing seam, 24 gage, and galvalume. A3.1 calls for factory finish 
to be selected.  A7.1 calls for metal roof, alternate standing seam metal roof.

Response: Contact Mueller, Inc. per sheet A2.3 

2. Question: Please specify the 1” continuous XPS insulation.

Response: FORMULAR extruded polystyrene rigid board insulation, manufacturer: Owens Corning Insulating 
Systems, or approved equivalent.  Provide per manufacturers recommendations.  Provide submittal for engineer or 
architect approval. 

3. Question: Please specify the spray foam insulation; open or closed cell?

Response: Icynene, Open Cell – Contact Donny Beicker of Beicker Insulation for pricing.  830-303-8200 or 830-305-

1979. 

4. Question: Provide overhead door sizes at the lube bays.

Response: 12’ tall x 14’ wide.

5. Question: Please specify the wall panel type. Corrugated can mean PBR panel, C-Panel, etc.

Response: Contact Mueller, Inc. per sheet A2.3 

6. Question: Specify the chop stone to be used for the water table.

Response: Gray Leuders chopped, contact New Braunfels Stone Supply at 830-609-6633 

7. Question: Provide a material allowance for ceramic tiles, solid surface tops and backsplashes.

Response: Ceramic tile wainscot - $3.00/s.f. (material only) B) Solid surface countertops and backsplash- $62.00/s.f. 
(materials only) C) Appliances in Breakroom: Refrigerator, dishwasher, stove and vent hood - $3,500, including 
installation 

8. Question: Clarify the bidding as two phases: am I bidding phase 2 as a stand-alone project or as follow-on to phase 1? Are
you going to consider awarding Phases 1 & 2 to different contractors? Would phase 2 be done more than 60 days after
Phase 1 completion? Do you want Phase 2 priced as an Add Alternate?

Response:  Bid as one complete project (separate pricing for Phase 1 and for Phase 2); No, the bid will be awarded to 
one contractor; If awarded Phase 2, there will be no lapse in time between Phase 1 and Phase 2; Yes, Phase 2 should 
be  priced as an add alternate.   

It is the intent of the County to complete Phase 1 and Phase 2, however, the County reserves the option to only award 
Phase 1.    

9. Question: What is the spacing for 2 x wood bracing as stud walls shown in detail 01/A7.1



Response: See updated sheet A7.1       

 

10. Question: Are the metal building columns to be left exposed in Lobby, Break room, Restroom and Training Room?  

Response: See updated sheet A7.1         

 

 
11. Question: Please provide sealed structural drawings for the Storage and Mechanical mezzanines construction.  

Response: Engineered signed & sealed drawings are not part of the scope of work for this firm.  Construct as per 
current local codes and industry construction practices. 

 

12. Question: Please clarify the scope of civil work to be performed by the County and the Contractor. 

Response: Civil work will be performed by the County, not the Contractor.  The scope of civil work to be performed by 
the County will include everything outside the building envelope with the exclusion of porch1 and porch 2 and inclusion 
of the building pad.  

 

13.  Question: Please clarify the HVAC scope of work for Phase 1 & 2. 

Response: Phase 1 deals with the shop/garage area.  This area does not deal with any air conditioning.  This area is 
only gas infrared heaters and ridge vents.  Phase 2 deals with the office/training area.  This design deals with air 
handlers, condensing units, exhaust fans, economizers, furnaces, and a cooling coil. 

 

14. Question: Is the Mechanical Mezz to be constructed in Phase 1 or 2? 

Response: Framing and finish out of this space to be in Phase 2 

 

15. Question: Please clarify the Plumbing scope to be completed in Phase 1. If the Mech Mass is not to be constructed in 
Phase 1, where will the water heater be placed for Phase 1? 

Response: Water heater shall be suspended from all thread from roof purlins.  Contractor to coordinate placement & 
attachment with metal building supplier. 

 

 
16. Question: Please confirm limits of work to be completed beyond the building envelope. As an example, does contractor’s 

scope of work include the concrete apron, porches and concrete walks indicated on plan sheet 4 of 10?  
 
Response:  Limits of work to be completed beyond the building envelope, by the Contractor, will include two porches. 
 

 
17. Question: Please confirm contractor is providing silt fence on plan sheet 9 of 10. 
  

Response:  No, contractor is not providing silt fence on plan sheet 9 of 10. 
 

 
18. Question: Please confirm that project duration of eight (8) months as noted on bid form. 
 

 



Response:  Yes, project duration of eight (8) months is correct as noted on bid form (as per specifications, page 21, 
section3.0). 
 
 

19. Question: Please provide amount of liquidated damages (if any) to be charged. 
 

Response:  Not applicable. 
 
 

20. Question: Please provide a project budget of value. 
 

Response:  Total budget for the project is $750,000.  (Note: This is a total project budget, includes other costs than just 
the Contractor, for example engineering/architect, site work, landscaping, parking, etc.) 
 

 
21. Question: Will a building permit be required? If so, who will be responsible for obtaining and payment? 
 

Response:  Yes, a building permit will be required. The General Contractor will be responsible for obtaining and 
payment of permit (as per specifications, page 13, Permits/ Licenses section). 
 
 

22. Question: Who will be responsible for paying for project material testing? 
 

Response: The Owner          
 
 

23. Question: Please refer to plan sheet A5.2, Door Schedule Note #9 and clarify.  Note refers to an alternate, for which there 
is none indicated on the bid form. 

Response: Provide alternate as indicated on plans.       

 
24. Question: Please refer to plan sheet A5.1, Finish Schedule Notes #17 & 18 refer to alternate, for which there is none 

indicated on the bid form. 
 

Response: Provide alternate as indicated on plans.       
 
 

25. Question: Please refer to plan sheet A5.1, Finish Schedule Notes #1-3. Denoted finishes need to be clarified. Need group 
for ceramic tile material and confirmation of standard colors for stained concrete and epoxy floor coating.  

Response: Ceramic Tile – Floor tile: Group IV, wall tile: Group II; Stained concrete – Stain color to be selected by 
owner and architect.  Limit choices to 6 possible colors; Epoxy Coating – Color to be selected by owner and architect.  
Limit choices to 4 possible colors.  
 
 

26. Question: Please refer to plan sheet A5.1, Finish Schedule. The finish schedule indicates acoustical ceiling at the Lobby. 
However, the RCP drawing on sheet A6.1 doesn’t show acoustic ceiling in the room. Please clarify ceiling type in Lobby. 

 
Response: Sheet A6.1 with Reflected Ceiling Plan takes precedent over sheet A5.1, finish schedule regarding ceiling 
at Lobby, Office and Table/Chair Storage.    
 
 

27. Question: See question 11 above. The same issue exists at the Office and Table/Chair Storage rooms.  
 

Response: Sheet A6.1 with Reflected Ceiling Plan takes precedent over sheet A5.1, finish schedule regarding ceiling 
at Lobby, Office and Table/Chair Storage. 
 
 

28. Question: Please provide any wage scale requirements, if required. 



 
Response:  Not applicable. 
 
 

29. Question: Please provide any S/M/WBE requirements, if required. 
 

Response:  Not applicable. 
 
 

30. Question: Please confirm there is also an overhead door on the west end of the building near the tire storage area in 
addition to the six on the north and south walls. 

 
Response: Yes, there is a door at west wall.  To be the same size at the others, 12’ tall x 14’ wide. 
 
 

31. Question: Please reference plan sheet 2 of 10, note 14. Will a demolition permit be required? If so, who will be responsible 
for obtaining and payment? 

 
Response:  No demolition permit is required. 
 
 

32. Question: Please reference plan sheet A1.1, General Note #8. Please provide list of all owner supplied items.  
 

Response:  No materials will be supplied by Owner (as per plans, A1.1, GN8) 
 
  

33.  .Question: Is there a bid bond required? 
 
Response:  No 
 

 
34.  Question In the structural sheets 4/10 shows 4” of select fill under the slab. All other details show 12”. Please clarify. 

 
Response: Correct sub-grade pad is 4’-0”. See Geo report. 
 
 

35. Question: Will only the concrete mix and strength test be by contractor and all other testing be by owner? 
 

Response:  No, all testing will be performed and paid by Owner. 
 
 

36. Question: Is the concrete apron and walk to be by contractor? 
 

Response:  The concrete aprons under porch 1 and porch2 will be by contractor and the remaining concrete aprons 
and walkways will be by County. 
 
 

37. Question: Are the wheel stops, striping and signature be by contractor? 
 

Response:  No, this will be performed by County. 
 
 

38. Question: 1/A8.1 shows the insulation extending 4’ past the wall in the break room, the adjacent ceiling is not in the same 
plane, please clarify. 
 

Response: See updated sheet A8.1.        
 
 

39. Question: Is there insulation above the ceiling in any rooms other than the break room? 
 



Response: Yes, above the Office and AV Closet.       
 
 

40. Question: Are all exterior metal building walls to have the same items as 1/A7.1 less the stone? 
 

Response: Yes.           
 
 

41. Question: Please provide metal building specifications. 
 

Response: Contact Mueller, Inc. per sheet A2.3       
 
 

42. Question: The finish notes 17 & 18/A5.1 reference alternate 1 & 2. The bid form doesn’t indicate this.  
 

Response: Provide alternate as indicated on plans.       
 
 

43. Question: Please provide appliance specifications. 
 

Response: Refrigerator, dishwasher, stove and vent hood - $3,500 allowance, including installation. 
 
 

44. Question: Please provide insulation (batt vinyl face and foam) specifications. 
 

Response: Batt vinyl face insulation at roof – per metal building manufacturer. Foam - Icynene, Open Cell – Contact 

Donny Beicker of Beicker Insulation for pricing.  830-303-8200 or 830-305-1979. 
 
 

45. Question: Is the building pad by the general contractor? 
 

Response:  No.  The building pad will be performed by the County. 
 
 

46. Question: Please provide a list of quantities and items furnished by the owner, the contractor is to install. 
 

Response:  None. 
 
 

47. Question: Is interior framing lumber to be fire treated? 
 

Response: No.           
 
 

48. Question: Is the ceramic tile to be mud set in the restrooms? Is so, what thickness is applicable? 
 

Response: Provide 1 1/4” thick mud set.        
 
 

49. Question: Is the 1” XPS insulation board at the roof to go over the purlins and the R-28 metal building insulation? 
 

Response: See updated sheet A7.1.        
 
 

50. Question: Does the wood framing at the exterior wall go in stage 1 or stage 2? 
 

Response: Phase 1          
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                      



51.  Question: Can the gas piping system for sized and installed at a lower supply pressure to avoid using gas pressure 
regulators at each appliance? 
 

Response: Yes. Gas piping was originally sized for supply pressure of 2psi. To avoid regulators, we re-sized the 
piping for 4oz supply pressure.  Please see attached drawings. 
 
 

52. Question:  Which sinks are supposed to be operated by foot pedals? 
 

Response: One sink in the maintenance area and one in the maintenance restroom. Please see attached drawings. 
 
 

53. Question: The plumbing fixture specifications only name an ADA toilet. Is there another non-ADA toilet that should be used 
in non-ADA stalls? 
 

Response: Yes. Please see new specifications on attached drawings. 
 

 
54. Question: At the Mezzanine, if exposed, is the underside to be painted? 
 

Response: See sheet A7.3 and A7.4   
 
 

55. Question:  Is the exposed metal building structure (walls and ceiling), and exterior canopies to be painted? 
 

Response:  Material by metal building company to be factory-painted. Exposed steel columns to be painted. Refer to 
sheet A7.1 for reference.  
 
 

56. Question: Are the overhead doors to be painted or left with factory finish? 
 

Response:  Factory finished 
 
 

57. Question: Are the stairs to the mezzanine to be steel with concrete pan or checker plate treads? No details are shown, and 
the rails are called out on sheet A2.3 as 1 ½ pipe with pickets. 

Response:  See sheet A7.3 

 
58. Question: If the stairs are steel, is the PEMB Manufacturer supplying them? 

Response:  No. 

  
59. Question: Is the PEMB Manufacturer going to supply the 8x8 tube columns to support the 18” deep truss? No structural 

details are shown for these items either. 

Response: No. See Sheets A2.3 and A7.4. See Sheet A2.3 (STR) for beam sizes. 

 
60. Question:  Is there a size for the bollards shown at the overhead doors? The only bollard size shown on the civil drawings 

is for the handicap parking signs.  

Response:  The pipe bollard is outside the building envelope and will be installed by the County. 
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